IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

KING YOUNG BROWN, JR.

APPELLANT

VS.

CASE NUMBER 2006 - KA - 00315 - COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF WASHINGTON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI CAUSE NUMBER CR - 2002 - 329

PREPARED BY:

BRANDON I. DORSEY, MSB BRANDON I. DORSEY, PLLC POST OFFICE BOX 13427 JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI 39236 - 3427 TELEPHONE: (601) 605 - 9006 FACSIMILE: (601) 605 - 9353

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

- I. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN GRANTING THE STATE'S MANSLAUGHTER INSTRUCTION MARKED AND IDENTIFIED AS S 6.
- II. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE STATE TO SOLICIT TESTIMONY IDENTIFYING KING YOUNG BROWN, JR. AND ROBERNISHA WEBSTER THROUGH MICROSCOPIC HAIR COMPARISONS.
- III. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT VIOLATED KING YONG BROWN, JR.'S 6TH AMENDMENT RIGHT TO CONFRONT HIS ACCUSERS WHEN THAT COURT ALLOWED THE STATE TO SOLICIT TESTIMONY FROM A DNA ANALYST OTHER THAN THE ANALYST THAT ACTUALLY CONDUCTED THE DNA ANALYSIS.
- IV. WHETHER THE VERDICT FINDING KING YOUNG BROWN, JR. GUILTY OF MANSLAUGHTER IS AGAINST AND/OR INCONSISTENT WITH THE OVERWHELMING WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE.
- V. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN OVERRULING KING YOUNG BROWN, JR.'S OBJECTION TO THE ADMISSION OF THE STATE'S PHOTOGRAPHS MARKED AND IDENTIFIED AS S 78, S 74, S 77, S 76 AND S 79 ON THE BASIS THAT SUCH PHOTOGRAPHS' PROBATIVE VALUE WAS OUTWEIGHED BY ITS PREJUDICIAL EFFECT.
- VI. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE ILLEGAL SEIZURE OF KING YOUNG BROWN, JR.'S HAIR, BLOOD AND SALIVA SAMPLES THUS VIOLATING THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE 4TH, 5TH, 6TH AND 14TH AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI.

- VII. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN OVERRULING KING YOUNG BROWN, JR.'S MOTION FOR DIRECTED VERDICT.
- VIII. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN DENYING APPELLANT, KING YOUNG BROWN, JR.'S MOTION FOR MISTRIAL.
- IX. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN LIMITING
 KING YOUNG BROWN, JR.'S ABILITY TO CROSS EXAMINE AND/OR
 IMPEACH THE STATE'S FINGERPRINT EXPERT.
- X. WHETHER THE COURT ERRED IN DISMISSING AN AFRICAN AMERICAN JUROR FROM THE JURY.
- XI. WHETHER THE VERDICT FINDING KING YOUNG BROWN, JR. GUILTY OF FORCIBLE RAPE IS AGAINST THE OVERWHELMING WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. NATURE OF THE CASE

The instant case is submitted to this Honorable Court to determine: (1) whether the lower court erred in granting the State's manslaughter instruction marked and identified as S - 6; (2) whether the lower court erred in allowing the State to solicit testimony identifying King Young Brown, Jr. and Robernisha Webster through microscopic hair comparisons; (3) whether the lower court violated King Young Brown, Jr.'s 6^{th} amendment right to confront his accusers when the lower court allowed testimony from a DNA analyst other than the analyst that actually conducted the DNA analysis; (4) whether the verdict finding King Young Brown, Jr. guilty of manslaughter is against and/or inconsistent with the overwhelming weight of the evidence; (5) whether the lower court erred in overruling King Young Brown, Jr.'s objection to the state's photographs marked and identified as S - 78, S - 74, S - 77, S - 76 and S - 79 on the basis that such photographs probative value was outweighed by its prejudicial effect; (6) whether the lower court erred in allowing the illegal seizure of King Young Brown, Jr.'s hair, blood and saliva samples thus violating the due process clause of the 4th, 5th, 6th and 14th of the Amendments of the United States Constitution and the Constitution Of The State Of Mississippi; (7) whether the lower court erred in overruling Appellant, King Young Brown, Jr.'s motion for directed verdict; (8) whether the lower court erred

in denying King Young Brown, Jr.'s motion for mistrial; (9) whether the lower court erred in limiting Appellant, King Young Brown, Jr.'s ability to cross examine and/or impeach the state's fingerprint expert; (10) whether the lower court erred in dismissing an African American juror from the jury and (11) whether the lower court verdict finding King Young Brown, Jr. guilty of forcible rape was against the overwhelming weight of the evidence.

Appellant, King Young Brown, Jr., by and through his attorney, argue, contend and submits to this Honorable Court the lower court has committed reversible error and as a result, the verdicts should be overturned and/or reversed and remanded.

B. THE COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE LOWER COURT

That Appellant, King Young Brown, Jr., on or about August 2, 2002, was indicted by the grand jurors of Washington County, Mississippi on the charge of murder and forcible rape. (RE 9 - 11). Subsequent thereto, King Young Brown was arraigned and the matter was set for trial.

That on or about May 2, 2002, the State moved the lower court for blood, hair and saliva samples. (RE 12 - 13) In response thereto, the lower court, by and through, Honorable Ashley Hines executed an Order granting the State's request for relief.

(RE 14) Subsequent thereto, King Young Brown, Jr. moved the lower court to reduce his present bond and set a reasonable bond. (RE 15 - 16). In response thereto,

however, the Court denied the relief requested in those premises. (RE 17)

That on or about October 25, 2002, King Young Brown, Jr. moved the lower court to allow him an opportunity to request an independent analysis of the hair sample that had been obtained from him. On or about October 25, 2002, King Young Brown, Jr. moved the lower to transfer the proceeding to Youth Court. (RE 18 - 19) In response thereto, on or about December 19, 2002, the lower court denied King Young Brown, Jr.'s request for relief. (RE 20 - 21)

That on or about November 6, 2003, King Young Brown, Jr., filed his Notice Of Intent To Establish Albi. (RE 22 - 24)

That the first trial commenced on or about February 2004, and that trial ended with a "mistrial. The matter was set again on or about November 2004, and that trial also ended with a mistrial. Subsequent thereto, King Young Brown, Jr. moved the court, yet again, to reduce the present bond and for a reasonable bond. However, the lower court did not find the Motion well taken and denied the relief requested therein. The matter, was finally set, yet again, in November 2005, and that trial resulted in the verdicts that are at issue in the instant brief. (RE 25 - 27)

C. THE DISPOSITION OF THE LOWER COURT

That as a result of the trial that commenced on or about November 2005, King Young Brown, Jr. was found guilty of manslaughter and rape. (TR 2500 See RE 25 - 27,

TR 2501 See RE 89 - 90) As a direct and proximate result thereof, King Young Brown, Jr., by and through his attorneys¹ of record, moved the lower court for a motion for judgment notwithstanding jury verdict or in the alternative a new trial and for reasonable bail pending appeal. Subsequent to King Young Brown, Jr.'s foregoing Motion, the Court denied the relief requested. (RE 28 - 38) As a result of the jury verdict, King Young Brown, Jr. was sentenced by the lower court judge on or about December 19, 2005, wherein he was ordered to be remanded to the custody of the Mississippi Department Of Corrections for a term of twenty (20) years on the charge of manslaughter and thirty (30) years on the charge of rape, with both sentences slated to run consecutively with each other. (RE 39 - 40)

That subsequent thereto, King Young Brown, Jr. moved the lower court to allow him to appeal as a "pauper." (RE 41 - 45) In response thereto, the lower court found the Motion well taken and appointed the undersigned. (RE 46 - 47) Subsequent thereto, King Young Brown, Jr. filed his designation of the record (RE 48 - 53) and the appropriate certificate of compliance. (RE 54 - 55)

¹At the time that King Young Brown, Jr.'s Motion For Judgment Notwithstanding Jury Verdict Or In The Alternative A New Trial And For Reasonable Bail Pending Trial, he was actually represented by three (3) attorneys of record, namely Johnnie E. Walls, Jr., Mitchell Creel and Brandon I. Dorsey.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The instant matter arose out of an incident that occurred on or about April 20, 2002. The minor victim, namely Robernisha Webster, along with her mother visited her (i.e. Cynthia Webster) mother's home located at 1112 Legion Drive. (TR 920 See RE 57)). According to Cynthia Webster, they were caused to visit her mother's home for the purpose of taking care of her grandmother, Rose Holmes. (TR 920 See RE 57). At the time of the incident that serves as the basis for the instant action, the minor victim, Robernisha Webster was six (6) years old (TR 919 See RE 58) and she attended Ella Darling Elementary School as a kindergarten student. (TR 920 See RE 57, TR 921 See RE 58).

Cynthia Webster recalled that she and Robernisha arrived at her parents' home (i.e. Oscar Merrill, Sr. and Bernice Merrill) after 4:00 p.m. (TR 921 See RE 58). When they arrived, Cynthia Webster's father, Oscar Merrill, Sr. was present as well as her brothers Oscar Merrill, Jr. and Gerald Merrill and her grandmother Rose Holmes. (TR 921 See RE 58). Robernisha, however, wanted to go to the park across the street, but Cynthia recalled that she instructed her (i.e. Robernisha) to speak to everyone at the house first. (TR 922 See RE 59). In response to those instructions, Robernisha complied and spoke to everyone. In fact, as Robernisha was leaving the house headed towards the park, Cynthia's brother, Gerald Merrill, called Robernisha back to give him

a hug. (TR 922 See RE 59).

Cynthia Webster recalled that when she saw Robernisha go over to the park, no other children were present. (TR 922 See RE 59). Shortly, Cynthia stated that she took Robernisha to Sonics. After they returned, Robernisha wanted to go back to the park. (TR 929 See RE 60, TR 930 See RE 61, TR 931 See RE 62). After Robernisha went back to the park, Cynthia recalled that she went inside the house (i.e. her parents' home) to the storage and got the laundry basket and went inside and got the clothes off the line. (TR 931 See RE 62). Cynthia said that after checking on Robernisha to see whether she was still at the park, she (i.e. Cynthia) sat back down, resumed folding clothes, but then dozed off. (TR 931 See RE 62, TR 932 See RE 63). Cynthia said that when she woke up, her father Oscar Merrill, Sr., as well as her brothers, Oscar Merrill, Jr. and Gerald Merrill had all left the house. (TR 932 See RE 63). Cynthia recalled that she went outside of the house in an effort to see Robernisha, but when she went outside, she no longer saw Robernisha. (TR 932 See RE 63). Cynthia stated that she ran into Oscar Merrill, Jr. coming up Legion Drive and asked him whether he had seen Robernisha, and he indicated that he had not seen her. (TR 933 See RE 64).

In response thereto, Cynthia stated that she went to Tangee's (i.e. Tangee lives on Dublin Street) to see whether she had seen Robernisha and Tangee told her that she saw Robernisha going behind the church yard. (TR 933 See RE 64). In response,

Cynthia stated that she too went behind the church yard, went around Bellfast and the adjacent alley, but still was not able to find Robernisha. (TR 933 See RE 64).

Cynthia stated that while she had gone by the church and towards Bellfast, she encountered a lady that had some small children. Cynthia stated that she described Robernisha to the lady. She also informed the lady that Robernisha was wearing red overalls, a white tee shirt, red ruffled socks and white tennis shoes with light blue trim with a "Powder Puff" girl on them. (TR 935 See RE 65).

Cythia sought the aid of law enforcement. As a result of her request for assistance, she was contacted by Officer Laverne Simpson, who requested that Cynthia provide her with some of Robernisha's clothing, so that she could in turn, give those items to the dog handlers. (TR 946 See RE 66). The next day, Robernisha was found in a garbage can located at 1104 Legion Drive, which is next door to her parents' home. (TR 948 See RE 67).

According to Leon Spencer, step - father of Appellant, King Young Brown, Jr., he was caused to come in contact with his garbage can on the day in question at the request of his wife, Gloria Spencer, mother of King Young Brown, Jr.. Mr. Spencer stated that he saw a large white plastic bag in his trash can after looking inside at his wife's request. (TR 2200 See RE 83). Mr. Spencer indicated that he attempted to pick it up, but it was heavy, so he asked his wife to retrieve a knife. (TR 2200 See RE 83).

Mr. Spencer stated that he cut the bag, and after doing so, he saw that there was another bag inside that bag. In response thereto, he in turn got the attention of law enforcement. (TR 2200 See RE 83). After law enforcement arrived, namely Officer James Whitehead, it was confirmed that Robernisha's body had in fact been located. (TR 2202 See RE 84).

Subsequent thereto, Officer Ricky Spratlin was contacted and he arrived at 1104 Legion Drive where the body was found. He testified that upon his arrival in the yard, he came in contact with Officer Whitehead and Officer Crockett. (TR 1664 See RE 74). He indicated that when he looked in the garbage can, that he noticed that the bags had been torn or had cuts in them. (TR 1664 See RE 74). After responding to the scene, Officer Spratlin contacted the Mississippi Crime Lab, requesting their assistance in processing the scene and area. In response to the request, David Zeliff and his assistant, Greg Nester were dispatched to Greenville. Mr. Zeliff testified that he arrived in Greenville later that evening. Mr. Zeliff testified that when he arrived at 1104 Legion Drive, he noticed that there was a large crowd of people gathered around. (TR 1350 See RE 68). Based upon the fact that it was dark and the condition of the area, Mr. Zeliff thought that they should find a more sterile environment in order to process the garbage can. (TR 1350 See RE 68, TR 1354 See RE 69). Emphasis added.

As a result of these conditions, Mr. Zeliff, his assistant, and other law enforcement officials of the Greenville Police Department retired to the Harris Funeral Home in an effort to began collecting potential evidence. Subsequent thereto, the child's body was transported to Jackson for an autopsy. Following the autopsy and efforts by Mr. Zeliff to collect potential evidence, several submissions were sent to the Mississippi Crime Lab and Reliagene in New Orleans, Louisiana.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the lower court committed reversible error in granting a "manslaughter instruction" in these premises. Mr. Brown contends that there was no evidence presented at the trial of the instant mater by the State Of Mississippi which supported the giving of a manslaughter instructions by the lower court. Mr. Brown further contends that when the court granted a "manslaughter instruction", that the jury was essentially allowed to compromise its verdict.

King Young Brown, Jr., contends that the lower court erred by allowing the State Of Mississippi to present misleading testimony and arguments to the jury regarding microscopic hair comparisons for the purpose of: (1) identifying King Young Brown, Jr. and the minor victim, Robernisha Webster and (2) showing that King Young Brown, Jr. and the minor victim, Robernisha Webster shared the same environment, which was not consistent with well settled Mississippi jurisprudence. King Young Brown, Jr.,

further contends that the lower court further erred when it allowed the State Of Mississippi to claim that Robernisha Webster had been inside his (i.e. King Young Brown, Jr.) home when the State Of Mississippi had direct knowledge through subsequent Mitochondrial DNA analysis, that excluded Robernisha Webster as being the "donor" of the hair samples allegedly found and collected in King Young Brown, Jr.'s home and on his clothing. King Young Brown, Jr., contends, in addition, that the State Of Mississippi presented evidence which it knew, and or should have known was not true, thus deliberately and erroneously misled the jury that Robernisha's hair was found in Mr. Brown's home.

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the lower court erred in allowing another DNA analyst, other than the actual analyst that tested the hairs, testify at the trial of the instant matter. Mr. Brown contends that he was unable to confront and cross examine his accusers, and thus his 6th amendment right to confront was essentially violated.

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the verdict of manslaughter was against the overwhelming weight of the evidence. Mr. Brown contends that he did not testify, and that through witnesses for the State Of Mississippi as well as witnesses for Mr. Brown, no one testified that he (i.e. Mr. Brown) was seen anywhere near Robernisha.

King Young Brown, Jr. also contends that the lower court erred in allowing the admission of certain autopsy photographs of Robernisha Webster. Mr. Brown contends that the photographs were "gruesome" in nature and lacked any probative value.

Mr. Brown contends that such photographs were offered by the State Of Mississippi solely for the purpose of inflaming the jury.

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the lower court erred in failing to grant his motion for directed verdict. Mr. Brown asserts that the State Of Mississippi failed to meet its burden of proof for either manslaughter or rape.

King Young Brown, Jr. also contends that the lower court erred in not granting his Motion for mistrial. Mr. Brown moved for mistrial at approximately 2:30 p.m. on the second (2nd) day of deliberations, which was after the jury had been deliberating in excess of thirteen (13) hours. Mr. Brown contends that the jury, at that time was apparently "dead - locked" and pressured by having to reach a verdict prior to the "Thanksgiving Holiday."

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the lower court erred in failing to allow him an opportunity to impeach the State Of Mississippi's finger print analyst, even in light of well settled jurisprudence that demonstrated that the process by which fingerprint comparisons are completed, are subject to human error.

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the lower court also committed reversible error when excused a black juror after the trial had commenced over his objections. Especially considering that there was no showing or objective finding from the lower court that the juror would not and could not deliberate and reach a verdict in fairness and based upon the evidence and the law in accordance with the lower court's instructions.

King Young Brown, Jr. contends that the conviction of forcible rape is inconsistent with the overwhelming weight of the evidence. Again, there was no testimony, nor was there any physical evidence, whatsoever, presented by the State Of Mississippi that places him (i.e. King Young Brown, Jr.) in the area of Robernisha at the time that she was allegedly raped.

ARGUMENT

I. WHETHER THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN GRANTING INSTRUCTION THE STATE'S MANSLAUGHTER INSTRUCTION MARKED AND IDENTIFIED AS S - 6.

The standard of review for challenges to jury instructions is as follows:

Jury instructions are to be read together and taken as a whole with no one restriction taken out of context. A defendant is entitled to have jury instructions given which present his theory of the case, however, this entitlement is limited in that the court may refuse an instruction which incorrectly states the law, is covered fairly elsewhere in the instructions or is without foundation in the evidence.

Humphrey v. State, 759 So.2d 368 (Miss. 2000) (Citing Heidel v. State, 587 So.2d 835, 42 (Miss. 1991)).

Even though based on meager evidence and highly unlikely, a defendant is entitled to have every legal defense he asserts to be submitted as a factual issue for determination by the jury under proper instruction of the court. Where a defendant's proffered instruction has an evidentiary basis, properly states the law, and is the only instruction presenting his theory of the case, refusal to grant it constitutes reversible error.

The standard for determining whether an evidentiary basis exists is as follows:

Lessor included offense instruction should be granted unless the trial judge – and ultimately this court – can say, taking the evidence in the light most favorable to the accused, and considering all reasonable inferences which may be drawn in

favor of the accused from the evidence, that no reasonable jury could find the defendant guilty of the lesser included offense (and conversely not guilty of at least one element of the principal charge).

In Humphrey, the lower court refused that defendant's manslaughter instruction submission. The reason asserted by the trial court was ".. there was no basis in evidence that permitted such an instruction in light of the defense of alibi chosen by defendant Humphrey." Emphasis added. The lower court went further and stated that to grant an instruction on the lesser included offense and alibi would be inconsistent and confusing to the jurors because it would necessarily require him (i.e. defendant Humphrey) to be on the scene and make some admission that he was there. Emphasis added. Id. (Citing Hester v. State, 602 So.2d 869, 872 (Miss. 1992)).

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