IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

KING YOUNG BROWN

APPELLANT

NO. 2006-KA-0315-COA

FILED

VS.

.

DEC 1 1 2007 OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

APPELLEE

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: DESHUN T. MARTIN SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL MISSISSIPPI BAR NO. 101526

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

I.

THE JURY INSTRUCTION WAS PROPER.

The Mississippi Supreme Court held in <u>Smith v. State</u>, 835 So.2d 927, 934 (Miss. 2002) that when considering a challenge to a jury instruction on appeal, the Court does not review jury instructions in isolation; rather, it reads them as a whole to determine if the jury was properly instructed. <u>Dobbs v. State</u>, 950 So.2d 1029 (Miss. 2006) holds that when read as a whole, if the jury instructions fairly announce the law of the case and create no injustice, then no reversible error will be found.

II.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ALLOWING RELEVANT EVIDENCE.

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 401, RELEVANT EVIDENCE:

"Relevant Evidence" means evidence having any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence.

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 703. BASES OF OPINION TESTIMONY BY EXPERTS:

The facts or data in the particular case upon which an expert bases an opinion or inference may be those perceived by or made known to him at or before the hearing. If of a type reasonably relied upon by experts in the particular field in forming opinions or inferences upon the subject, the facts or data need not be admissible in evidence.

III.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT VIOLATE THE APPELLANT'S VI AMENDMENT RIGHT OF CONFRONTATION.

United States Constitution: VI Amendment:

In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public

trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defense.

IV., VII., VIII., and XI. are combined.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ITS REFUSAL TO GRANT APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR A NEW TRIAL AND IN THE ALTERNATIVE A JUDGMENT NOT WITHSTANDING THE VERDICT. APPELLANT'S MOTIONS FOR DIRECTED VERDICT AND MISTRIAL WERE PROPERLY DENIED. THE VERDICT WAS WELL WITH THE OVERWHELMING WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE.

Smith v. State, 826 So.2d 768, 770 (Miss. App. 2002) holds that in determining whether a jury verdict is against the overwhelming weight of the evidence, the Court must accept as true the evidence which supports the verdict and will reverse only when convinced that the circuit court has abused its discretion in failing to grant a new trial.

In judging the legal "sufficiency," as opposed to "weight," of the evidence on a motion for a directed verdict or request for peremptory instruction or motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict, the trial judge is required to accept as true all of the evidence that is favorable to the State, including all reasonable inferences that may be drawn therefrom, and to disregard evidence favorable to the defendant. <u>Hart v. State</u>, 637 So.2d 1329, 1340 (Miss. 1994); <u>Edwards v. State</u>, 615 So.2d 590, 594 (Miss. 1993); <u>Clemons v. State</u>, 460 So.2d 835, 839 (Miss. 1984); <u>Forbes v. State</u>, 437 So.2d 59, 60 (Miss. 1983); <u>Bullock v. State</u>, 391 So.2d 601, 606 (Miss. 1980); <u>Boyd v. State</u>, 754 So.2d 586, 590 (Miss. App. 2000).

V.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ALLOWING RELEVANT EVIDENCE.

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 401, RELEVANT EVIDENCE:

"Relevant Evidence" means evidence having any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence.

VI.

DENIAL OF DUE PROCESS DID NOT OCCUR.

United State Constitution: IV Amendment:

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized.

United States Constitution: V Amendment:

No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous crime, unless on a presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in the land or naval forces, or in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger; nor shall any person be subject for the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just compensation.

United States Constitution: VI Amendment:

In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defense.

United State Constitution: XIV Amendment § I:

All persons born or naturalized in the United States, and subject to the jurisdiction thereof, are citizens of the United States and of the State wherein they reside. No State shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the United States; nor shall any State deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor deny to any person within its jurisdiction the equal protection of the laws.

THE TRIAL COURT WAS PROPER IN LIMITING THE CROSS EXAMINATION OF THE STATE'S FINGERPRINT EXPERT.

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 611(b):

(b) Scope of Cross-Examination. Cross-examination shall not be limited to the subject matter of the direct examination and matters affecting the credibility of the witness.

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 401, RELEVANT EVIDENCE:

"Relevant Evidence" means evidence having any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence.

X.

THE JURY WAS PROPERLY IMPANELED.

United States Constitution: VI Amendment:

In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defense.

THE ARGUMENT

PROPOSITION I.

THE JURY INSTRUCTION WAS PROPER.

Appellant's counsel wrongly contends that jury instruction, S - 6 / an instruction regarding

manslaughter, should not have been issued to jury. (Appellant Brief 15).

The Mississippi Supreme Court held in Smith v. State, 835 So.2d 927, 934 (Miss. 2002) that

when considering a challenge to a jury instruction on appeal, the Court does not review jury

instructions in isolation; rather, it reads them as a whole to determine if the jury was properly

instructed. <u>Dobbs v. State</u>, 950 So.2d 1029 (Miss. 2006) holds that when read as a whole, if the jury instructions fairly announce the law of the case and create no injustice, then no reversible error will be found.

Brassfield v. State, 905 So.2d 754 (Miss. App. 2004) holds that instructions should clearly inform jury of elements of crimes and State's burden of proof, and there was no risk that jury was confused about elements of crime necessary to convict.

The Court does not review jury instructions in isolation; rather, it reads them as a whole to determine if the jury was properly instructed. <u>Smith v. State</u>, 835 So.2d 927, 934 (Miss. 2002), <u>Kelly</u> <u>v. State</u>, 493 So.2d 356, 359 (Miss. 1986) and <u>Norman v. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1298, 1303 (Miss. 1980). Reading the jury instructions as a whole, all elements to the crime of manslaughter are present and properly stated.

The State would submit that this issue brought by the Appellant is therefore lacking in merit.

PROPOSITION II.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ALLOWING RELEVANT EVIDENCE.

Brown's counsel contends that the trial court should have held a hearing regarding

admissibility of the microscopic hair comparisons. (Appellant Brief 20).

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 401, RELEVANT EVIDENCE:

"Relevant Evidence" means evidence having any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the action more probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence.

Mississippi Rule of Evidence 703. BASES OF OPINION TESTIMONY BY EXPERTS:

The facts or data in the particular case upon which an expert bases an opinion or inference may be those perceived by or made known to him at or before the hearing. If of a type reasonably relied upon by experts in the particular field in forming opinions or inferences upon the subject, the facts or data need not be admissible in

evidence.

The analytical framework provided by the modified <u>Daubert</u> standard requires the trial court to perform a two-pronged inquiry in determining whether the expert testimony is admissible under Mississippi Rule of Evidence 702. Under Mississippi Rule of Evidence 702 expert testimony should be admitted only after a two pronged inquiry. First, the witness must be qualified as an expert because of the knowledge, skill, experience, training, or education he or she possesses. Mississippi Rule of Evidence 702. Second, the witness's scientific, technical, or other specialized knowledge must assist the trier of fact. <u>Watkins v. U-Haul International, Inc.</u>, 770 So.2d 970, 973 (Miss. App. 2000), <u>Mooneyham v. State</u>, 915 So.2d 1102 (Miss. App. 2005), and <u>Daubert v. Merrell Dow</u> Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 509 U.S. 579, 113 S.Ct. 2786 (1993).

The aforementioned two part test was met, and the trial judge ruled that the State's expert's testimony was relevant.

Emil Lyon was properly certified as an expert in the field of Forensic Hair Examination as per the record. (Tr. 1825 - 1827). Emil Lyon's testimony verified that the victim and the perpetrator had human hair, head and pubic hair, in and around their environment.

3 Q. And what did you find when you compared

4 the known hairs of King Brown, Junior, to the hairs

5 found on the outer surface of the inner bag

- 6 containing the body of Robernisha Webster?
 - A. Pubic hairs of Negroid origin which
- 8 exhibit the same microscopic characteristics as

9 those in Submission 51-4, one head hair fragment of

10 Negroid origin which exhibits the same microscopic

11 characteristics as those in Submission 3, hairs

12 and/or hair fragments of Negroid origin which do not

13 - exhibit sufficient characteristics for body hair

14 determination or comparison.

7

15 Q. All right. When you say the same

16 microscopic characteristics, what do you mean?

17 A. Well, at the Mississippi Crime Lab, we can

18 either exclude a hair, or we can say that it's not

19 possible to exclude it, or we can say that it must

20 be included, and in this case, I could not exclude

21 those hairs as being from Mr. Brown, those pubic

22 hairs, so they were indistinguishable from his

23 knowns. (Tr. 1840).

12 A. (BY THE WITNESS) It's my opinion that

13 these two people shared the same environment, I

14 mean, the number of exchanges and the number of

15 hairs with the same characteristics of each person

16 that are in that environment and the items that came

17 from that environment. I certainly would not be

18 able to exclude either one of those two people from

19 having shared the same environment. (Tr. 1859).

The State would submit that this issue brought by the Appellant is therefore lacking in merit.

PROPOSITION III.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT VIOLATE THE APPELLANT'S VI AMENDMENT RIGHT OF CONFRONTATION.

United States Constitution: VI Amendment:

In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, by an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defense.

Appellant's counsel contends that Chris Larson, who it says actually performed the analysis,

was available to testify and should have testified. (Appellant Brief 23).

Amrita Lal-Paterson was property qualified in the record (Tr. 1950 - 1955) as an expert in

the field of DNA as per <u>Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals, Inc.</u>, 509 U.S. 579, 113 S.Ct. 2786 (1993).

EXHIBIT NUMBER S-109 is the DNA chart which completely explains that the perpetrator's DNA was in, on, and around the environment of the victim, Robernisha Nicole

Webster.

12 A. The conclusion that we came -- that was 13 reported was that King Brown, Junior could not be 14 excluded as being a donor to either of the two hairs. Now, one hair gave us results for 11 of the 15 16 13 markers that we were testing for. The other hair gave us results for all 13 markers that were tested. 17 18 for. The statistical conclusion that was reported 19 was that the genetic profile of the DNA donor in the 20 sample, the hair sample, occurs with a frequency of occurrence of one in greater than 10 billion persons 21 22 of either the Caucasian race, the African-American race, or Hispanic race. 23 24 Basically, what that means is to see that 25 profile again, you would need greater than 10 billion people of any of those races that I 26 mentioned. (Tr. 1970 - 1971). 27

The State would submit that this issue brought by the Appellant is therefore lacking in merit.

PROPOSITIONS IV., VII., VIII., and XI. are combined.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ITS REFUSAL TO GRANT APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR A NEW TRIAL AND IN THE ALTERNATIVE A JUDGMENT NOT WITHSTANDING THE VERDICT. THE VERDICT WAS WELL WITH THE OVERWHELMING WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE.

Smith v. State, 826 So.2d 768, 770 (Miss. App. 2002) holds that in determining whether a

jury verdict is against the overwhelming weight of the evidence, the Court must accept as true the

evidence which supports the verdict and will reverse only when convinced that the circuit court has

abused its discretion in failing to grant a new trial.

The State counters that the jury heard all of the evidence, exhibits and testimony, and the

members of the jury believed the evidence produced by the prosecution. The jury verdict should

stand.

The correct standard as stated above in <u>Smith</u>, is to take the evidence presented by the

prosecution as true together with reasonable inferences. The evidence cited in the record, taken as true together with reasonable inference is more than sufficient evidence in support of the jury's verdict. Furthermore, weight and sufficiency of the evidence will be discussed in detail below.

The applicable standard of review is found in <u>Dilworth v. State</u>, 909 So.2d 731, 741 (Miss. 2005) and <u>Bush v. State</u>, 895 So.2d 836, 843 (Miss. 2005). The standard of review for a post-trial motion is abuse of discretion.

In <u>Carr v. State</u>, 208 So.2d 886,889 (Miss.1968) the court held:

We stated that in considering whether the evidence is sufficient to sustain a conviction in the face of a motion for directed verdict or for judgment notwithstanding the verdict, the critical inquiry is whether the evidence shows 'beyond a reasonable doubt that accused committed the act charged, and that he did so under such circumstances that every element of the offense existed; and where the evidence fails to meet this test it is insufficient to support a conviction.' However, this inquiry does not require a court to 'ask itself whether it believes that the evidence at the trial established guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.' Instead, the relevant question is whether, after viewing the evidence in the light most favorable to the prosecution, any rational trier of fact could have found the essential elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt.

Reasonably, matters regarding the weight and credibility to be accorded the evidence are to be resolved by the jury. "Weight" implicates the denial of a motion for a new trial while "sufficiency" implicates the denial of motions for directed verdict, peremptory instruction, and judgment notwithstanding the verdict. <u>May v. State</u>, 460 So.2d 778, 781 (Miss. 1984).

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